

RECEIVED SEP 03 1998

THE CONSTITUTION OF
THE INTERFRATERNITY COUNCIL



ARTICLE I.	NAME
ARTICLE II.	PREAMBLE
ARTICLE III.	MEMBERSHIP IN NATIONAL AND STATE ORGANIZATIONS
ARTICLE IV.	PURPOSE
ARTICLE V.	COMPOSITION
ARTICLE VI.	EXPANSION
ARTICLE VII.	COUNCIL MEETINGS
ARTICLE VIII.	OFFICERS AND ELECTIONS
ARTICLE IX.	IMPEACHMENT AND SUSPENSION
ARTICLE X.	JUDICIAL BOARD
ARTICLE XI.	INITIATION OF PLEDGES AND/OR NEW MEMBERS
ARTICLE XII.	FINANCES
ARTICLE XIII.	ENDORSEMENTS
ARTICLE XIV.	AMENDMENTS
ARTICLE XV.	HOUSING
ARTICLE XVI.	RISK MANAGEMENT
ARTICLE XVII.	PRESIDENT'S COUNCIL
APPENDIXES	
APPENDIX A	FRATERNITY ORDER OF ESTABLISHMENT
APPENDIX B	FRATERNITY AND SORORITY ADDRESSES AND PHONE NUMBERS
APPENDIX C	GREEK HOUSING - CAMPUS BENCHMARKS PROCEDURES
APPENDIX D	ALCOHOL AND BYOB POLICY

ARTICLE I. NAME

This organization shall be known as the Interfraternity Council or the IFC of the University of Central Florida.

ARTICLE II. PREAMBLE

In order to promote and perpetuate the best interests of the University of Central Florida and the Fraternities represented therein, to insure cooperation among said Fraternities and between them and the University authorities and the community, to the end that the condition of the Fraternities and their relations with the University and community may be improved, we do ordain and establish this Constitution for the Interfraternity Council of The University of Central Florida on behalf of our respective fraternities.

ARTICLE III. MEMBERSHIP IN NATIONAL AND STATE ORGANIZATIONS

The members of the Council shall have the authority to enter into membership with those national, regional, and state Interfraternal organizations whose programs and service are deemed to be value to the Interfraternity Council of the University of Central Florida.

ARTICLE IV. PURPOSE

The Interfraternity Council shall be the supervising governing body for all men's social Fraternities chartered by the University of Central Florida. The Council functions under the advisement of the Division of Student Affairs and in accordance with University policies. The Council's specific purpose shall be:

1. To establish and administer rules governing Rush, Pledging, Initiation, and general deportment of Fraternities.
2. To encourage scholastic achievement, greater cooperation, and harmony among its members.
3. To promote the best interest of the University of Central Florida.
4. To promote and maintain a University spirit and loyalty which will transcend an individual Fraternity's ambitions.

ARTICLE V. COMPOSITION

Section 1. All undergraduate nationally chartered social Fraternities, as recognized by the National Interfraternity Council at the University of Central Florida are eligible for membership in the Interfraternity Council. There shall be two classes of membership: Regular and Associate.

Regular Members:

- a. Regular membership shall be those social Fraternities whether local or national who have fulfilled the membership requirements set fort in *Section 2* of this Article.
- b. Regular Member Fraternities will consider the following to be the duties of a Regular Member:
 1. Pay all dues and fines owed to the Interfraternity Council as specified in rules and procedures.
 2. Abide by this Constitution and the rules and procedures and the regulations adopted by the Council.
 3. Cooperate with any proceeding of the Judicial Board with which it may be involved and abide by all Judicial Board rulings affecting it.
 4. Cooperate with all administrative actions of the Executive Council.

5. Maintain an updated list of all its current members, officers, advisor and corporation board members in the office of the Dean of Students and with the Greek Council office.
 6. Abide by all the University regulations and policies.
 7. Encourage Interfraternity cooperation among its members.
 8. Encourage scholarship and leadership among its members.
 9. Fully cooperate with rules and regulations set by GAMMA.
- c. Regular member Fraternities shall have the following privileges:
1. Have all privileges and rights under this constitution and the rules and procedures, except as limited by actions of the Judicial Board or the University.
 2. Receive coverage on a par with any other member in all Interfraternity Council publications that list or describe Member Fraternities.
 3. Participate in all Interfraternity Council sponsored programs.
 4. Vote at meetings of the Council when properly represented and in good standing.
 5. Participate in the Fraternity division of Intramural sports.
 6. Have its members, as they are eligible, hold elected and appointed offices in the Interfraternity Council.
 7. Participate in all awards given by the Interfraternity Council.

Associate Members:

- d. Associate membership shall be those nationally recognized social Fraternities, who are in the process of fulfilling the requirements in Section 2. An associate members shall have all the rights and privileges of regular membership, except the right to vote in the Council and to hold office. They shall be bound by the rules and decision of the council.
- e. Duties of an Associate Member Fraternity shall have all the duties associated with a regular member.
- f. Privileges of an Associate Member Fraternity shall be limited to the following:
 1. Participate in all Interfraternity Council sponsored events.
 2. Attend and speak at all Interfraternity Council meetings.
 3. Participate in the Fraternity division of Intramural sports
 4. Be eligible for Interfraternity Council awards.
 5. Have all privileges and rights under this Constitution and rules and procedures except as limited by actions of the Judicial Board or the University.
 6. Receive coverage on a par with any other member in all Interfraternity Council publications that list or describe Member Fraternities.

Section 2.

An associate member Fraternity may gain regular member status in the Council providing they meet all of the following requirements.

- a. Total active membership of twenty undergraduate initiates for a period of two successive semesters.
- b. Attainment of an overall 2.0 minimum grade point average by the Fraternity for the above said period.
- c. Sound financial condition as determined by the Council, after a review of the Fraternities records for the above said period.
- d. Full operation under an authorized advisor for the above said period.
- e. Must be a chartered organization by a National fraternity.
- f. Approval by the council of the application, containing the above five subsections at the end of a one semester period, by a three-fourths vote of the total Council membership.

ARTICLE VI. EXPANSION

- Section 1.* The purpose of the Interfraternity Council expansion Policy shall be:
- To provide specific guidance and support for new fraternities.
 - To provide a colony membership period before granting full privileges of the Interfraternity Council to a fraternity.
 - To provide special guidance and support to fraternities who have lost membership to The Interfraternity Council for less than one year.
 - To provide for the establishment of an Interfraternity Council Expansion Committee.

Section 2. The Interfraternity Council Expansion Committee shall consist of the Interfraternity Council Executive Council, the Graduate Assistant for Greek Affairs, the Coordinator for Greek Affairs to the Fraternities and one delegate from every fraternity. The duties of this committee shall be to study the applications and presentations of any group seeking Interfraternity Council Colony Member status at The University of Central Florida. This committee shall meet and review applications for membership during the first two scholastic weeks in March every year.

Section 3. All undergraduate social fraternities, as recognized by the National Interfraternity Council (NIC) shall be eligible for membership in the Interfraternity Council, regardless of race or religion.

Section 4. Expansion shall be limited to the discretion of the Expansion Committee and the Interfraternity Council and may be limited, even if the following stipulations and guidelines are met, for the best interest of the existing Greek system and the university.

Section 5. Requirements for new fraternities applying for colony member status the Interfraternity Council are as follows:

- The fraternity must have met the requirements and requests of the Interfraternity Council.
- The fraternity must present the following materials to the Expansion Committee:
 - A written report containing:
 - Colonization and or chartering strategy and criteria.
 - Short and long-term rush and growth goals.
 - Short and long-term housing plans.
 - A letter from the chapter's Alumni Association and Alumni Advisor explaining their levels of support for the University of Central Florida chapter.
 - A letter from the fraternity's national organization stating its level of support or the University of Central Florida chapter.
 - An oral presentation by the national organization with an opportunity for members of the Expansion Committee to ask questions.
- The fraternity must receive approval of $\frac{3}{4}$ of the Expansion Committee.
- Recommendation for approval or denial will be made to the Interfraternity Council by the Expansion Committee following an official vote by that committee.
- The Fraternity must then attend a designated Interfraternity Council meeting to answer questions.
- The Fraternity must then receive approval of $\frac{3}{4}$ of the voting membership of the Interfraternity Council.
- Only Chapters that attended 75% of expansion committee meetings will be allowed to vote in the final Interfraternity Council approval vote.

Section 6. If the Fraternity does not receive the necessary $\frac{3}{4}$ vote of the Interfraternity Council or the required $\frac{3}{4}$ vote of the Expansion Committee, a written appeal may be made, and reconsideration will

be determined by the President of the Interfraternity Council and Greek Advisor to the Interfraternity Council

Section 7. Appeals and requests for acceptance may be made only once per academic year.

Section 8. If either the Interfraternity Council President or the Coordinator For Greek Affairs to the Interfraternity Council determine that reconsideration is required, steps e, f, and g will be repeated.

ARTICLE VII. COUNCIL MEETINGS

Section 1. Regular meetings shall be held on a cyclical basis, starting with the first week of the semester.

Section 2. Special meetings may be called at the discretion of the President or at the request of thirty three (33) percent of the total Council membership. Notification of such a meeting must be given to each Council member by the Secretary of the Council, at least twenty-four (24) prior to the special meeting. This notification must state time, place and purpose of the meeting.

Section 3. A majority vote of those members, with voting privileges, present shall be sufficient for the passage in all questions unless otherwise provided for in the Interfraternity Council Constitution.

Section 4. A quorum for conducting business shall consist of two-thirds (2/3) of the total Council membership in good standing.

Section 5. A fraternity must be represented in each Interfraternity Council meeting by either the chapter president, vice president, or an appointed delegate.

Section 6. All Interfraternity Council appointed delegates must be either a member of the Individual fraternity's executive board or a graduate of the JIFC program.

Section 7. All Interfraternity Council appointed delegates are to be specified by the regular meeting of the second week of both the fall and spring semesters and are to remain consistent throughout each.

Section 8. A fraternity who is not represented by any of the three representatives stated in Section 5 loses its power to vote at that meeting.

Section 9. A fraternity who is not represented at on Council meeting or one GAMMA meeting, consecutively, shall be considered in bad standing.

Section 10. Voting privileges shall be returned to a fraternity in bad standing, and that status removed, upon a vote of 2/3 majority of those in good standing at the next Council meeting.

Section 11. Quorum for voting on all motions shall be those members with voting rights at that meeting.

Section 12. Robert's Rules of Order shall govern the conduct of the meetings in so far as it does not conflict with the constitution and the regulations enacted by the Council.

ARTICLE VIII. OFFICERS AND ELECTIONS

Section 1. The officers of the Council shall be known as the Executive Council of the Interfraternity Council and their duties and order of succession are as follows:

a. **The President.** The President shall preside over all meetings of the council. He shall enforce the Constitution and any regulations adopted by the Council. He shall represent the Interfraternity Council at all times as the official representative. He shall appoint all committee chairmen and serve as an ex-officio member of all committees of this council.

b. **The Executive Vice-President.** The Executive vice President shall perform the duties of the president in the event of the President's absence. He shall preside over the Judicial Board of this

- Council, and service as an ex-officio member of all committees of this Council and he shall coordinate their activities. He shall serve as the Director of Chairs, organizing and overseeing all committees organized by the Interfraternity Council.
- c. **The Vice-President of Risk Management.** The Vice-President of Risk Management shall be the Chairman of GAMMA and preside over those meetings. He shall provide accurate attendance records of these meetings to the Council Secretary. He shall enforce the rules of the Alcohol Policy in Appendix D of this Constitution.
 - d. **The Vice-President of Recruitment.** The Vice-President of Recruitment shall preside over all Rush meetings. he shall inform all Fraternities of the current Rush rules, and he shall enforce those rules. he shall coordinate all Rush activities for upcoming Rush, while in office, and perform activities to prepare rush for the next Vice-President of Recruitment.
 - e. **The Vice-President of New Member Education.** The Vice-President of New Member Education shall promote the development of the new member education programs in all NIC fraternities at the University of Central Florida. His chief responsibilities will include, but not limited to:
 - I. **Pledge Educator Workshop** - At least once per semester, an education seminar that addresses national and campus fraternity issues. This presentation must include a representative of each fraternity. If attendance is not complete sanctions must be imposed on the absent fraternity by the Interfraternity Council's Judicial Board.
 - II. **Junior Interfraternity Council** - Per semester, the Standing Vice-President shall oversee an organization, of fraternity new members, that will fulfill the following objectives:
 - A. Promote Interfraternalism among new members of the greek system at the University of Central Florida.
 - B. To create a Council of new members, in which, leadership can be fostered and diplomatic relations may be understood.
 - C. To plan and implement a variety of social service projects, goal setting, and educational workshops.
 - D. To encourage active and effective leadership in the fraternity, Interfraternity Council, and the Southeastern Interfraternity Conference (SEIFC).
 - f. **The Vice-President of Public Relations.** The Vice-President of Public Relations shall be responsible for all the public relations for the Interfraternity Council. He shall publish a monthly newsletter for the Interfraternity Council which shall be issued to all Fraternities chartered by the University of Central Florida. He shall work in conjunction with the University of Central Florida public relations department and each individual fraternity's public relations chair to establish a strong line of communication between all fraternities and the media (i.e. university newspapers, city newspapers, and all television and radio stations.
 - g. **The Vice-President of Finance.** The Vice-President of Finance shall record the income and expenses of the Council. He shall enforce dues requirements by informing the Council of all delinquencies. He shall be in charge of all expenses and funds within the Council's accounts. He may approve any disbursements of less than \$25.00. He shall provide the Council with the reports described in Article XII.
 - h. **The Vice-President of Correspondence.** The Vice-President of Correspondence shall record the minutes of the Council meetings. He shall be responsible to the President for correspondence, distribution of materials, maintaining attendance records, keeping records of all Judicial meetings, and is responsible for documenting all revisions made into the Constitution and rules and procedures.
 - i. The officers of this Council shall have any and all duties which are outlined in Robert's Rules of Order for each respective office provided they do not conflict with any portion of the Constitution.

Section 2. Eligibility for officers shall be those fraternity members in good standing with their fraternity, the Interfraternity Council, and the University of Central Florida. No Interfraternity Council Executive Council Member shall be an officer in his fraternity (including Rush Chairman and Pledge and or New member Educator) during his term of office

Section 3. The Executive Council shall be elected at the regular meeting of the tenth week of the fall semester. Nominations shall be accepted during the two regular meetings prior to the elections. Nominations shall be closed at the second meeting where nominations are allowed. Elections will be held at the next regular meeting. If needed a runoff will be held to narrow the field of nominees to two. A simple majority vote on a secret ballot shall constitute the election of the Executive Council. The election of these officers shall follow the order of creation defined inn Section 1 of this article.

Section 4. The new officers shall be installed and assume their duties at the regular Council meeting of the twelfth week of the Fall semester.

Section 5. The term of office shall be one year for all members on the executive council, and one semester for all chairmanships.

Section 6. If a vacancy in the office of the President occurs, There will be nominations taken at the next two regular meetings and elections will be held a the following regular meeting. If needed a runoff will e held to narrow the field of nominees to two. The Executive Vice-President shall serve as interim president until the election.

Section 7. Should a vacancy occur in any other position in the executive Council, the President shall appoint the new officer and the appointee will be confirmed by a majority vote of the Council.

Section 8. The Advisors to the Intefraternity Council shall be known as the Coordinator for Greek Affairs and the Graduate Assistant for Greek Affairs.

ARTICLE IV. IMPEACHMENT AND SUSPENSION

Section 1. A motion for impeachment shall be presented to the Council through the secretary of the Interfraternity Council, and it shall be read on the floor one regular meeting prior to the meeting at which the trial is to be held.

Section 2. Impeachment shall be conducted as a civil trial with the plaintiff having the option of one man representing him, and the defendant having the option of one man representing him. If the Chairman of the Judicial Board be the one on trial, the next officer in seniority shall occupy the Chairman's position.

Section 3. A fraternity may be suspended from the Council by a three-fourth (3/4) vote upon recommendation from the Judicial Board for violation of any State, University, or Interfraternity Council rules or regulations.

Section 4. Suspensions may be for no less than one semester and no longer than two semesters, unless indefinite suspension may be appealed after two semesters by the procedures for membership outlined in Article V.

Section 5. A member of the Council which falls below twelve (12) undergraduate members for a period of one semester, shall have its status reviewed by the Executive Council and Coordinator for Greek Affairs and/or the Graduate Assistant for Greek Affairs. The fraternity must chow just cause and extenuating circumstances as a basis for continued recognition.

ARTICLE X. JUDICIAL BOARD

Selection and Term:

Section 1. The Judicial Board shall be composed of one and only one member from each fraternity.

- a. Each fraternity shall nominate one member of its fraternity to be approved as a Justice on the Interfraternity Council Judicial Board.
- b. To be eligible to be member of the Interfraternity Council Judicial Board, the man must be in good standing with the University of Central Florida and his fraternity must be in good standing with the Interfraternity Council.
- c. Good standing with the Interfraternity Council shall be termed as any fraternity not on suspension from Interfraternity Council.
- d. The term of office shall be one year from the time of approval.
- e. In the case of a vacancy on the Judicial Board the affected fraternity shall nominate another member for approval by the Interfraternity Council President and the Chairman for the Judicial Board.

Section 2. Quorum for any Judicial board hearing shall be 75 percent of the total number Fraternities considered to e in good standing with The Interfraternity Council less any non-participating Justice(s) affected by Section 2 listed below. If Quorum is not met the proceedings shall be postponed until such time quorum can be established.

- a. The Judicial Board member(s) whose Fraternity is being formally charged y The Interfraternity Council shall not participate as a Justice in any part of the hearing proceedings concerning his fraternity.

Section 3. The Executive Vice President of Interfraternity Council shall serve as chairman of the Judicial Board.

- a. The Chairman shall confirm good standing of all members up for approval as Judicial Board members.
- b. In the case that the Chairman's fraternity is brought up on formal charges he shall step down and a temporary Chairman shall be elected from among the participating Justices by those Justices.
- c. The Chairman or temporary Chairman shall vote only as a tie-breaker in the case of a tie vote being reached by the Judicial Board.

Section 4. The President of The Interfraternity Council shall approve and appoint all members for Justice that are found to be in good standing.

Section 5. Justices shall hold no other elected or appointed position within The Interfraternity Council and shall not be his fraternity's Interfraternity Council representative.

Section 6. The Judicial Board has a right to hear all cases that have been brought before it. The Judicial Board shall be guided by the Interfraternity Council Constitution and rules and procedure, The Golden Rule and any other State and Local laws that may apply.

Judicial Procedure:

- a. The following are violations of the Student Conduct Code and may result in sanctions as determined by the Interfraternity Council.
 1. Furnishing false information to the University.
 2. Forgery, alteration, or misuse of University Documents, records or identification cards.
 3. Unauthorized use, taking or destruction of public or private property on campus, or acts committed with disregard of possible harm to such property.
 4. Actions or statements which amount to intimidation, harassment, or hazing.
 5. Participation in or continued attendance at a raid on a University living unit, after warning to disperse by an University official or any law enforcement officer.
 6. Disorderly conduct.

7. Disrupting the orderly operation of the University as defined in Florida Statutes and Demonstration Policy of the University.
 8. Failure to comply with any University rule or regulation, including but not limited to, the Academic Honesty Guidelines.
 9. Violations of Housing, Inter-Residence Hall Association, and area Government regulations.
 10. Violation of conduct probation.
 11. Possession, use or delivery of controlled substances as defined in Florida Statutes.
 12. Possession or use of a firearm on the University campus except as specifically authorized in writing by the University.
 13. Possession or use of fireworks, explosives, dangerous chemicals, ammunition or weapons (including but not limited to, bows and arrows or switch-blade knives).
 14. Action(s) or conduct which hinders, obstructs, or otherwise interferes with the implementation or enforcement of the Golden Rule.
 15. Failure to appear before any of the disciplinary authorities and to testify as a witness when reasonably notified to do so. Nothing in this section shall be construed to compel self-incrimination.
 16. Violation of any municipal ordinance, law of the State of Florida, rule promulgated by the Florida board of Regents, or law of the United States.
 17. Actions which are committed with disregard of the possible harm to an individual or group, or which result in injury to an individual or group.
 18. Any actions, including those of sexual nature or involving sexual activities which are intimidating, harassing, coercive, or abusive to another person or which invade the right to privacy of another person.
 19. Any action without authorization from the university which does or causes to, access, use, modify, destroy, disclose or take data programs of supporting documentation residing on or relating in any way to computer, computer system or computer network or causes denial of computer system service to an authorized user of such systems.
- b. Upon receipt of an official complaint against a fraternity, the Interfraternity Council President shall consult with the President of the accused fraternity concerning the offense. A committee will be formed, composed of the Interfraternity Council Executive Council. The function of this committee will be to determine whether a Fraternity incident is to be construed as a group matter involving the whole Fraternity or individual matter. Individual matters shall be referred to the Director of Student Judicial Affairs. This does not preclude the possibility of action being judged to concern both the fraternity as a whole and individuals.

Section 8. Formal charges shall be submitted as a typewritten statement to the Executive Vice President of The Interfraternity Council by the President or designated authority of the plaintiff party. That statement shall include a complete description of the charges being filed, who the charges are against, the names and affiliations of those involved, and the date of the incident.

Section 9. The Executive Vice President shall have a preliminary meeting of the Judicial Board members to go over charges and allow for the Board to ready questions and set a formal hearing date.

Section 10. Formal Hearing Procedures shall be as follows:

- a. A formal hearing shall convene as follows:
 1. The plaintiff shall be represented by the President or Vice President of the Fraternity or an Interfraternity Council officer.
 2. The defendant fraternity shall be represented by only the President or Vice President.
 3. The convened judicial Board shall consist of the Executive Vice President and the Judicial board members.
 4. Five witnesses are allowed for both the Plaintiff and the Defendant.

5. Eight observers are allowed, three for both Plaintiff and Defendant, along with the Coordinator for Greek Affairs, the Interfraternity Council President and Secretary.
- b. Testimony shall consist of the following:
 1. The plaintiff states charges (max. time - 05 min.)
 2. The defendant reply (max. time - 05 min.)
 3. Plaintiff calls witnesses (max. time - 15 min.)
 4. Defendant calls witnesses (max. time - 15 min.)
 5. The plaintiff's final statement (max. time - 05 min.)
 6. The defendant's final statement (max. time - 05 min.)
- c. The decision phase of the hearing shall take place behind closed doors, immediately following the testimony. Only the convened Judicial Board will be allowed to remain. The following procedure will be followed as specified by the Chairman:
 1. Discussion of the charges and testimony.
 2. Vote on guilt of the defendant.
 3. Discussion of sentence.
 4. Vote on proposed sentence.
- d. The Judicial Board will reconvene the hearing immediately following the decision phase, and the Chairman shall read the verdict.
- e. After charges have been filed against a Fraternity, and the Fraternity charged has been found guilty of the offense by the Judicial Board, the Judicial Board has the power to impose any one of the following sanctions:
 1. A monetary fine commensurate with the amount of physical damage incurred.
 2. Some measure of community service which may not be used toward the overall Chapter Excellence Award or any other Interfraternity Council award.
 3. Interfraternity Council Warning. Any Fraternity that is found guilty of an offense while on warning will be placed immediately on Interfraternity Council Probation for a period determined by the Judicial Board.
 4. Interfraternity Council Probation. The Fraternity can receive no credit towards any Interfraternity Council award during the Probationary period. No probation may be longer than one year.
 5. Expulsion from the Interfraternity Council. If the Judicial Board states that a Fraternity is to be expelled from the Interfraternity Council then this decision must be passed at the next Interfraternity Council meeting in which two-thirds (2/3) of the fraternities are represented and the vote must pass by a unanimous vote of those present minus the fraternity being charged.
 6. If any sanctions imposed by the Judicial Board cross over terms of office the new Interfraternity Council Judicial Board must honor the old Interfraternity Council Judicial Board's decision and enforce it.
 7. These rules shall be used in conjunction with the Golden Rule.
- f. The transcript will be documented as follows:

1. The Interfraternity Council Secretary shall be responsible for the only official transcription of the testimony and verdict phases of the hearing.
2. The hearing is to be recorded on audio tape and then transcribed by the Interfraternity Council Secretary.
3. Written copies of the transcript will be kept on file in the Greek Council Office.
4. Audio Tapes will be kept on file in the Greek Council Office for 4 weeks following the Hearing. They will then be erased.

Section 11. Appeals will be as follows:

1. All appeals must be made within two weeks of the original formal hearing.
2. The only grounds for appeal will be unfair hearing, new evidence, or harsh judgment.
3. A typewritten appeal will be submitted to the Executive Vice President of The Interfraternity Council.
4. The Interfraternity Council Executive Vice President, President, Coordinator for Greek Affairs, the Graduate Assistant for Greek Affairs, and the Dean of Students will then meet and decide if the appeal is justified.
5. If an appeal is found to be justified, then another hearing will be held exactly in accordance with the above hearing procedures, except that all representatives to Interfraternity Council will sit in place of the Judicial Board. There is no appeal from this hearing.

Article XI. INITIATION OF PLEDGES AND/OR NEW MEMBERS

Section 1. Any pre-initiation activity must not be in violation of University regulations or civil law.

Section 2. No form of physical activity or morally degrading or humiliating activities may be carried on by the fraternity during its initiation procedures. Also no form of force which might foreseeable subject the initiate to danger of physical harm or injury may be practiced during the formal initiations.

Section 3. The individual fraternity will be held responsible for any deviation of the rules set forth in the preceding sections of this Constitution and rules and procedures and will be subject to any disciplinary action taken by the Judicial Board of this Council.

ARTICLE XII. FINANCES

Section 1. The Vice-President of Finance shall record the income and expenses of this Council. He shall enforce dues requirements by informing the Council of all delinquencies. He shall be in charge of all expenses and disbursements within the Council's accounts.

Section 2. All money collected by the Interfraternity Council shall be receipted and deposited in one of the Interfraternity Council accounts.

Section 3. Moneys necessary for the operation of the Interfraternity Council shall come from the funds projected in the budget for the fiscal year by:

- a. In the Spring semester an assessment of \$7/pledge or associate member and \$7/brother. The amount will be based upon the fraternities Spring roster. Rosters are to be presented by the second regular Council meeting after the completion of fraternity rush.
- b. In the Fall semester an assessment of \$8/pledge or associate member and \$8/brother. The amount will be based upon the fraternities Fall roster. Rosters are to be presented by the second regular Council meeting after the completion of fraternity rush.

Section 4. A fraternity that is delinquent in its accounts to the Interfraternity Council will be placed in bad standing and that fraternity will lose all voting rights in the Council and shall receive a 20% penalty per week until said liability is paid. The fraternity shall be subject to further disciplinary action as deemed necessary by the Interfraternity Council President.

Section 5. Each chairman shall, by the second week after the completion of fraternity rush of each semester, submit a budget for the semester to the Vice-President of Finance. The Vice-President of Finance shall then submit a final budget to the Council for a 2/3 approval by the second meeting after receiving each chairman's budget.

Section 6. The Vice-President of Finance shall prepare a Revenue and Expense statement to be submitted at the end of each semester and a final statement for the end of the fiscal year.

Section 7. Expenditures greater than \$100.00 that are not budgeted shall be approved by the Interfraternity Council by a 2/3 vote.

ARTICLE XIII. ENDORSEMENTS

All endorsements brought before the Executive Council for consideration. The endorsements shall be brought before the council at the next regular meeting and tabled for one week. Endorsements shall pass by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the Council at the next regular meeting.

ARTICLE XIV. AMENDMENTS

Proposed amendments to this Constitution shall be read, discussed, and tabled at the Council meeting at which they are submitted. The proposed amendments will then be read, discussed, and voted upon at the next regular meeting. Three fourths (3/4) vote of the Council membership shall be required for passage.

ARTICLE XV. HOUSING

Section 1. All fraternities who occupy a building that is in some manner designated a Chapter House, shall submit to the Interfraternity Council the address of that chapter house to be kept on file in the Greek Council Office, and shall abide by the rules and regulations of the Interfraternity Council Constitution and rules and procedures, University of Central Florida and the State of Florida for any functions that take place on said premises.

Specifically pertaining to Article XVIII, Section 1.

Section 2. All fraternities seeking on campus housing must meet all requirements of the University of Central Florida. *See Appendix C, Bench mark Procedures*

ARTICLE XVI. RISK MANAGEMENT

Section 1. The Interfraternity Council at the University of Central Florida, resolves that it is the duty of each fraternity at The University of Central Florida to develop a risk management program within the individual chapter. The Interfraternity Council believes that this will not only provide a safer environment for the members and guests, but will also reduce the liability of the chapter and the University. The

Interfraternity Council further resolves that risk management programs will bring greater respect and admiration for the University of Central Florida Greek System.

Section 2. The Alcohol Policy of the University of Central Florida Interfraternity council is as listed in Appendix D, Alcohol Policy, of this Constitution.

ARTICLE XVII. PRESIDENT COUNCIL

Section 1. The President's Council shall consist of all fraternity presidents recognized by the Interfraternity Council and the Interfraternity Council President will preside over meetings.

Section 2. The President's Council shall meet at least once each semester (Fall and Spring).

APPENDIX C
GREEK HOUSING
CAMPUS BENCHMARK PROCEDURES

G R E E K P A R K
University of Central Florida
Orlando, Florida

(Revised 9/16/92)

PROCEDURES FOR LOT SELECTION & DEVELOPMENT

The following procedures shall be followed and will govern lot selections and development within the Greek Park. Major additions and/or enhancements to developed projects must be coordinated and approved through the Greek Park Committee.

Note: For purposes of brevity, the following terms are used herein:

"Committee" shall mean the UCF Greek Park Committee.

"Planning" shall mean the UCF Director of Facilities Planning.

"Group" shall mean the concerned Greek Park Corporation.

"Architect" shall mean the design professional employed by the Greek Park Corporation.

A Pre-Initial Submittal shall be comprised of the following:

- I. Prior to contracting with an Architect, the Group and prospective architect shall present credentials and examples of work to demonstrate capabilities to complete a Greek Park project. A meeting with the Committee will be required.

Note: All drawings and specifications shall be on Computer Assisted Design (CAD).

An Initial Submittal shall be made containing the following:
(This submittal must be a bound document and presented to the Committee)

- I. An executed architectural contract (AIA Document B141-Standard Form of Agreement between Owner and Architect, latest edition)
- II. A project description, including:
 - A. An architectural program containing:
 1. Design objectives
 2. Space requirements (a description of each room and the size in square feet)
 3. Relationship of spaces
 4. Expansion requirements
 5. Site requirements
 6. Special requirements

- B. Estimated construction costs (total and cost per square foot)
- C. Project budget itemized as follows:
 - 1. Professional services fees (architect, attorney, etc.)
 - 2. Construction budget
 - 3. Furnishings Budget
 - 4. Contingency
- D. Evidence indicating that the group has available funds of at least \$25,000 or 25% of the estimated project budget, whichever is smaller must be produced.
- E. The fund-raising program, describing in detail the plan to raise funds to finance the construction and operate the house. Description must include the benchmarks for a fund-raising program or alternative financing program.
- F. A project schedule, integrated with the fund-raising program and showing the dates for at least the following items:
 - 1. Preparation of a schematic (concept) plan
 - 2. Completion of construction documents
 - 3. Beginning of construction
 - 4. Date to occupy building

Following the receipt of the Initial Submittal, and the determination by the Committee that all requirements have been properly complied with, the Group will be permitted to choose a lot from those included in the phase being developed. If the Initial Submittal is not complete as required:

- 1. In the case of minor irregularities, the Group will be given the opportunity to amend the submittal as required to bring it into full compliance,
- 2. In the case of major irregularities, the submittal will be returned and the Group will be required to revise and re-submit at a later date, thereby obtaining a new place in line following other groups that may have previously submitted.

In order to hold a chosen lot, the Group must maintain progress toward a completed and occupied facility in accordance with the following benchmarks. Failure to maintain required progress at any point will result in the loss of the reserved lot, and will require the Group to restart the entire submittal process. At this time the Architect and the Group should review the summary of construction requirements found in this document.

BENCHMARKS

Benchmark #1 (Pre-Design Conference)

No later than one (1) month following the lot selection, a pre-design conference shall be held including representatives of the Group, the Architect, the Committee and Planning. The purpose of this conference shall be to fully discuss the proposed project and to assure that all requirements are communicated.

Benchmark #2 (Schematic Design)

No later than three (3) months following the lot selection, Schematic Design documents shall be submitted to Planning for review and approval. A presentation by the Architect is required. Any modifications required to obtain approval shall be made prior to proceeding with further development of the project.

Schematic Design Requirements:

1. A survey by a registered surveyor depicting the meets and bounds of the proposed site with topographical contours at five foot intervals.
2. Soil borings are to be taken in the probable building zone to determine building suitability.
3. Schematic design sketches are to include the following:
 - Site plan sketch (3 copies)
 - Floor plan sketches (3 copies)
 - Front and rear elevation sketches (3 copies)
4. Required sketches are to be reviewed by the Committee and Planning. The review period is three weeks with all comments directed to the Architect. It is the responsibility of the Architect to respond in writing to all comments.
5. The Architect is required to copy the Office of Facilities Planning with all correspondence regarding this project.
6. All drawings shall be prepared by an Architect/Engineer licensed to practice in the State of Florida.
7. Approval or disapproval of each stage of development will be issued within three weeks of the Committee's receipt of the submittal.

8. A statement of estimated construction cost reflecting probable construction costs at this phase of the design process.

Required Drawings:

- One (1) complete set of Schematic Drawings to the Committee.
- Two (2) complete sets of Schematic Drawings to Planning.

Note: It is a requirement that the plans and specifications provide two (2) handicapped accessible entrances for each proposed house. One accessible entrance must be provided at the formal front entry and one accessible entrance must be provided from the parking lot. Further, all plans and construction documents shall comply with ADA requirements.

Benchmark #3 (Design Development)

No later than six (6) months following the lot selection, Design Development documents shall be submitted to the Committee for review and approval. Any modifications required to obtain approval shall be made prior to proceeding with further development of the project.

Design Development Requirements:

1. A site plan depicting all locations for utilities (power, water, and sewer) as well as a storm water management plan is required at this stage. The site plan must note all setbacks and show the relationship of the proposed building with adjacent structures. A tree survey showing existing trees and indicating trees to be removed is required at this stage. The Architect is encouraged to save as many trees as possible. This drawing must denote the first floor elevation in relationship with the high point of the center of Greek Park Drive as it traverses the site.
2. Design development drawings are to include the following:
 - a. Site plan drawing, as described above at 20th scale.
 - b. Floor plan drawings at 1/4" scale.
 - c. All exterior building elevations at 1/8" scale.
 - d. Principle interior elevations at 1/4" scale.
 - e. A typical wall section.
 - f. A life safety plan.
3. Outline Specifications to adequately describe the products that are to be used in the proposed structure. These specifications must include a narrative

description of the HVAC system and the fire alarm/security system. The security system is strongly recommended, but not required.

4. A color rendering at an appropriate scale to place the proposed building in the site environment.
5. A statement of estimated construction cost reflecting probable construction costs at this phase of the design process.
6. A statement regarding progress of fund-raising efforts.

Required Design Development Drawings:

- One (1) complete set and one (1) color rendering to the Committee.
- Three (3) complete sets to Planning.
- Three (3) complete sets to the State Fire Marshal's Office.
- One (1) complete set to Environmental Health and Safety.
- One (1) complete set to the State Certified Fire Safety Inspector.
- One (1) complete set to the Student Disability Services Director.

Required Design Development Drawings are to be reviewed by the Committee, Planning and the Student Disability Services Director. The review period is three weeks with all comments directed to the Architect. The Architect is responsible for delivering these drawings to the State Fire Marshal, Facilities Planning and the Student Disability Services Director. The Fire Marshal's Office will make a preliminary review of the Design Development Drawings. The Fire Marshal's review may encompass several weeks, therefore, the Architect may proceed until the review is complete. It is the responsibility of the Architect to respond in writing to all comments.

Benchmark #4 (Construction Documents)

No later than twelve (12) months following the lot selection, final working drawings and specifications shall be submitted to the Committee for review and approval. Any modifications required to obtain approval shall be made prior to the commencement of any construction.

No changes or modifications can be made to the approved contract documents without an addendum. All addenda must be sent to the Committee and Planning for review.

Construction Document Requirements:

1. Complete detailed sets of working drawings are required and are to be reviewed by the Committee and Planning. The review period is three weeks with all comments directed to the Architect.

The Architect shall administer the construction of this project. It is the Architect's responsibility to contact the Plans Review Section of the Fire Marshal's Office directly. It should be anticipated that Fire Marshal review will take approximately four (4) weeks. No construction can begin until the Fire Marshal and the Committee have given written approval to the Architect. It is the responsibility of the Architect to respond in writing to all comments and to track the progress of the Fire Marshal's review.

Fire Marshal Review Procedure:

- A. It is the responsibility of the Architect to contact the Plans Review Section of the State Fire Marshal's office directly. The approval from the State Fire Marshal's office is the Architect's responsibility.
 - B. No construction can commence without written approval from the Plans Review Section of the State Fire Marshal's office.
2. Complete sets of Specifications, that follow standard CSI format.
 3. A statement of final construction cost.
 4. A signed construction contract between the group and the contractor for review by the Committee.

Note: Please be advised that it is the Architect's responsibility to submit shop drawings of the fire alarm system to the University Physical Plant for review and approval. The Superintendent of Maintenance will review the fire alarm shop drawings.

Required drawings:

- One (1) set of Contract Documents to the Committee.
- Two (2) sets of Contract Documents to Planning.
- Three (3) sets of Plans and Specifications to the State Fire Marshal.
- One (1) set of Plans and Specifications to the Environmental Health and Safety Director.

- One (1) set of Plans to the State Certified Fire Safety Inspector.
- One (1) set of Plans and Specifications to the Student Disability Services Director.

Benchmark #5 (Financial Commitment)

No later than fourteen (14) months following the lot selection the Group shall submit to the Committee evidence of a financial commitment from an acceptable lending institution, indicating the availability of sufficient funds to finance the construction of the approved project. This shall include a letter of closing verification.

Benchmark #6 (Pre-Construction Conference)

No later than fifteen (15) months following the lot selection, a pre-construction conference shall be held between the Architect and the selected Contractor, and actual construction of the approved facility started immediately thereafter. Should a delay in construction occur, the Group must contact Planning prior to commencement of future construction.

Note: construction shall not start prior to the receipt and acceptance by Planning of the following items as specified in the Sub-Lease Agreement:

1. Payment and Performance Bond
2. Waivers of lien
3. State Fire Marshal Approval
4. St. Johns River Water Management District permit
5. Any other permits as regulated by the State and the University

Note: St. Johns requires that a storm water management plan be prepared for each lot. This plan must be consistent with the campus storm water management plan for the University. It is the responsibility of the Architect/Engineer to contact the Campus Civil Engineer, who will transmit the proposed storm water plan to St. Johns. No communication with St. Johns is to occur without the full knowledge and consent of the Campus Civil Engineer. The approval from St. Johns is the Architect/Engineer's responsibility. No construction can commence without written approval from the St. Johns River Water Management District, Orlando Office.

Pre-Construction Conference:

1. The Notice to Proceed will be issued by the University with approval of Committee.

2. The Contractor is required to issue a construction schedule describing in detail the projected construction progress. The schedule must also clearly identify the Architect's benchmark inspections. The Architect is to notify the University's Construction Inspector prior to each benchmark inspection so that the inspector can be present. If the construction schedule should fluctuate more than 14 days, the contractor must submit a revised schedule.
3. The Architect and the University's Construction Inspector will jointly prepare the final punch list.
4. Occupancy of the finished structure cannot occur until final inspection has been completed and approved by an appropriate State or County Fire Loss, Prevention and Management Bureau, the Office of Facilities Planning and the Architect. Facilities Planning must receive letters approving occupancy of the building from the Architect before occupancy can be granted.

Benchmark #7 (Construction Completion)

1. No later than twenty-four (24) months following the lot selection, the facility construction shall be completed (ready for occupancy).
2. It is the Architect's responsibility to provide the Physical Plant with record drawings of the project prior to occupancy. No irrigation system is to be placed on the site without providing the following information to the Physical Plant on the site plan:
 - A. Location of the irrigation water meter.
 - B. Location of the stub out from the main to the irrigation water meter.
 - C. Location of the water line off of the main. Show the cut-off valve and water meter.

Benchmark #8

Before the project can be occupied the following must occur:

1. All warranty data must be turned over to the Owner by the Contractor with a copy provided for the University.
2. A completion letter must be sent to the Owner by the Contractor with a copy to the University.
3. As-built drawings of the project must be transmitted to the Owner and the University.

4. The final inspection walk through with the Owner, Contractor, Architect and University Construction Inspector must have occurred with all parties approving the final building.
5.
 - A. A test of the fire alarm system must be performed by a state certified Fire Safety Inspector to determine if the system is 100% operational and able to communicate with the Central Station Equipment. This test must be verified by the Owner's representative with the Fire Alarm Subcontractor present.
 - B. A fire system inspection must be performed by a certified inspector.
6. A required maintenance contract of fire/intrusion system must be submitted.

Related Phone Numbers:

- Greek Park Committee Chair: Associate Dean of Students, or the Associate Vice President and Dean of Students, 823-2824
- Coordinator of Greek Affairs: 823-2824
- Director of Housing: 823-4663
- State Certified Fire Safety Inspector: 823-4463
- General Counsel: 823-2482
- Facilities Planning: Director, 823-2166
- Environmental Health and Safety: Director, 823-5323
- Student Disability Services: Director, 823-2371
- Physical Plant: Superintendent of Maintenance, 823-2058, or the Campus Civil Engineer, 823-2498
- State Fire Marshal's Office: (904) 487-2863
- St. Johns River Water Management District, Orlando Office: (407) 894-5423
- Greek Park Construction Inspector: Mr. Jack Price, 823-2166

SUMMARY OF CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS
(Based in part on the Sublease Agreement)

1. One or more buildings may be constructed on a lot as long as it meets all current codes and is approved by the University.
2. The building must be used exclusively for the housing of the students.
3. No building can be erected or altered until all required approvals permits have been obtained.
4. The housing facility to be constructed shall accommodate not less than six (6) students.
5. The net liveable floor space of the housing facility shall not be less than 1800 square feet.
6. Internal numbering of resident rooms shall be visible from hallways.
7. The front of the housing facility faces the front lot line and shall not be closer than 50 feet nor closer than 15 feet from the side and rear.
8. Steps, walks, landscaping, planters and directional signs are excluded from the setback restrictions.
9. Sufficient parking shall be provided to accommodate all the cars of the persons living on the premises. This parking need not be paved but shall be well defined.
10. No tree may be removed without the University's written approval.
11. No building shall be more than three stories in height.
12. The lot shall be sodded, irrigated by an underground automatic system, and landscaped with materials approved by the University.
13. Access shall be provided for service and delivery vehicles. Garbage storage shall be provided in a concealed area at the rear of the site.
14. All roof mounted mechanical equipment and duct work shall be screened from view by an enclosure.
15. Incinerator vents and stacks shall be located on the rear or non-street side of the building.

16. Gutters and downspouts shall be a color compatible with the surface to which they are attached.
17. Air conditioning shall be screened from the view of the streets and adjacent properties.
18. Vents, louvers, exposed flashing, tanks, stacks, overhead doors, rolling and man service doors shall be a color consistent with the color scheme of the building.
19. All fencing shall be compatible and shall not exceed six feet in height.
20. No antenna or any other form of electromagnetic radiation shall be erected without approval from the University.
21. Exterior illumination shall be designed and installed.
22. The use of site floodlighting fixtures is prohibited.
23. All outdoor lighting fixtures shall be compatible with or complement the architectural character.
24. Lighting fixtures for driveways, parking and service areas shall be freestanding fixtures with cut-off light sources.
25. Security lighting shall not project above the roof line and are restricted for lighting only service, storage, loading and other similar areas.
26. All exterior lighting shall be high pressure sodium lamps and be of vandal-proof type.
27. The maximum height for poles shall be twenty feet.
28. All construction works shall be performed by a contractor licensed by the State of Florida.
29. In event of construction not commencing within eighteen months from the date of execution of the lease, the Landlord shall have the right to terminate the lease without refund of the rental paid by the tenant.
30. If during the construction of improvements the tenant abandons the work, he shall have 30 days to respond to the University, else the University shall declare that the project has been permanently abandoned.
31. Nothing contained in the lease shall be construed to limit or restrict the right of the Landlord or University to parks, driveways, parking areas, other areas of vehicular or pedestrian traffic in the area of, and on the lot, to the same extent as the Landlord and University presently have or

hereafter may have to regulate the use of such areas on other parts of the University campus.

32. During construction the Architect will provide the Office of Facilities Planning with monthly reports describing the progress of the work.

SUMMARY OF BENCHMARKS

<u>Benchmark</u>	<u>Months After Lot Selection</u>
1. Pre-Design Conference	1
2. Schematic Design	3
3. Design Development	6
4. Construction Documents	12
5. Financial Commitment	14
6. Pre-Construction Conference	15
7. Construction Completion	24
8. Project Close out Procedures	24

APPENDIX D
ALCOHOL AND BYOB POLICY

THE CHARTER AND CONSTITUTION OF THE GREEK COUNCIL
OF THE UNIVERSITY OF CENTRAL FLORIDA

Be it resolved, that in order to enhance communication and relations within the Greek System, an entity shall be formed. This entity shall be known as the Greek Council.

The charge of this organization shall be to facilitate communication between the Interfraternity Council, Panhellenic Council and the National Panhellenic Council.

It shall be the goal of the Greek Council to encourage cooperation and co-sponsorship of activities between the respective member organizations. It shall be both the hope and purpose of the Greek Council to promote harmony between the Greek brothers and sisters of the University of Central Florida.

The advisors of the member organizations shall serve as advisors to the Greek Council.

The presidents of the member organizations shall serve as members of the council. They may send a delegate to serve as a proxy vote. A quorum shall consist of three people, the president or his/her appointed delegate from each member organization. All members shall be co-equal and any one of them may call a meeting of the council. All decisions must be unanimous in order to be put into affect.

In order to obtain Activity and Service Fee Funding, each member organization shall submit, through the Greek Council, to the Student Government, a separate, individual budget request. This will allow the member organization financial independence.

Any event this is dubbed a "Greek" event such as Greek Week or Greek Picnic must be organized by all three member organizations of the Greek Council.

The Greek Council shall encourage co-sponsorship and cooperative planning of activities and programs. This charter is agreed to hereafter, this _____ day of _____, _____.

President Interfraternity Council

President Panhellenic Council

President National Panhellenic Council

Appendix I: IFC Recruitment (RUSH) Rules

Section 1. Recruitment Meetings

- a. Recruitment meetings will be held at the discretion of the IFC Internal VP.
- b. Each fraternity chapter is responsible for having one (1) representative at each of these meetings. Any chapter absent from three consecutive meetings may not be allowed to participate in the formal recruitment week activities, until after meeting with the Internal VP and the Greek Advisor.

Section 2. Dry Recruitment

- a. Alcohol is prohibited at ANY and ALL fraternity recruitment functions.
 1. A function is defined as any event that would be considered a chapter activity by your individual fraternity's insurance policy (i.e.: two or more members at a local bar).
 2. A recruitment function is a function where potential members (non-member) are in attendance.
- b. Any event where alcohol is present with even one (1) potential member is present will result in a *flagrant violation*.
 1. The first violation of the Alcohol Policy will result in a \$500.00 fine.
 2. The procedures for filing a complaint against another chapter are in *Section 7*

Section 3. Recruitment Week Kick-off

- a. This will be the fraternity's first opportunity to meet with the potential members. Kick-off will be used to promote the Greek Life Consultants and Fraternity Life at the University of Central Florida.
- b. Each fraternity will be allowed to send ten (10) members to the Kick-off.
- c. Each fraternity chapter must send the ten (10) members attending Kick-off to a workshop. Your chapter will not be allowed to attend the Kick-off if this requirement is not met. This workshop will be scheduled prior to Kick-off.
- d. The attire for the event is casual, no tie and coat.
- e. Trophies, composites, or paddles will be allowed and as always, "good taste" must be observed with any material that is distributed.

Section 4. Greek Life Consultants (GLC)

- a. Any member of your chapter that is interested in consulting should submit an application. Applications will be accepted throughout the year and can be picked up at the Greek Council Office.
- b. The GLC will be responsible for attending Orientation sessions, high school visits, informational discussions during open house, and serve as representatives of the Greek community.

UNIVERSITY OF CENTRAL FLORIDA MASTER LISTING FOR FRATERNITIES AND SORORITIES (Revised 6/30/98)

Sorority (Chapter #)	Advisor	House Corporation	House Director	House Manager	National Headquarters
ALPHA DELTA PI (ZETA OMEGA) 4207 GREEK PARK DR ORLANDO FL 32816-1650 (407) 275-8750	KATIE COX 380-5910	SHARI MINTER 4202 WOODYLYNNE LN ORLANDO FL 32812 H-851-4207	JEAN WALTER 4207 GREEK PARK DR ORLANDO FL 32816-1650 (407) 381-5015	EDNA SPENCER 4207 GREEK PARK DR ORLANDO FL 32816-1650 275-4464	NATIONAL HEADQUARTERS 1386 PONCE DE LEON AVE. NE ATLANTA, GA 30306 (404) 378-3164 FAX: (404) 373-0084
ALPHA KAPPA ALPHA INC (PI PSI) UCF STUDENT ACTIVITIES PO BOX 163245 ORLANDO FL 32816-3245 823-0402	WAMPANNAGA SMITH 823-0402	KATHY KING COLLEGE OF BUSINESS BA 240 ORLANDO FL 32816-1400 W-823-2184			5656 S. STONEY ISLAND AVE. CHICAGO, IL 60637 (312) 684-1282 FAX: (312) 288-8251
ALPHA XI DELTA (THETA SIGMA) UCF STUDENT ACTIVITIES PO BOX 163245 ORLANDO FL 32816-3245 3306-8610	BETH ESCHENBERG 308-8610	MARY C. PETERS 5040 PARK CENTRAL DR #2013 ORLANDO FL 32839 HW 859-8725 PGR 934-9063			8702 FOUNDERS RD. INDIANAPOLIS, IN 46268 (317) 872-3500 FAX: (317) 872-2947
CHI OMEGA UCF STUDENT ACTIVITIES PO BOX 163245 ORLANDO FL 32816-3245 H-678-2728	JENNIFER WALKER 2221 FAIRGLENN WAY WINTER PARK, FL 32789 H-878-2728	MICHELLE ABRAM 616 MAJESTIC OAK DR APOPKA FL 32712 H-814-0814 W-682-6226			3395 PLAYERS CLUB PARKWAY MEMPHIS TN 3812-8817 (901) 748-8600
DELTA DELTA DELTA (BETA LAMBDA) 4220 GREEK PARK DR ORLANDO FL 32816-1670 (407) 380-8974	MARY WILLIAMS 804 A JAMESTOWN DR WINTER PARK FL 32792 H-679-8883 W-422-1575 X461	SHANNON DUFFY 2785 ARAGON TR LAKE MARY FL 32746 H-330-2829	SHARON SHAW 4220 GREEK PARK DR. ORLANDO FL 32816 (407) 380-8978	KATIE MEYER 4220 GREEK PARK DR. ORLANDO FL 32816 306-8621/207-4434	P.O. BOX 5987 ARLINGTON, TX 76005-5987 (817) 633-8001 FAX: (817) 652-0212
DELTA GAMMA (EPSILON TAU) 4101 GREEK PARK DR ORLANDO FL 32816-1610 (407) 658-9064	ERICA ORTIZ 281-9244	AMY ROSLEY 2424 CHANTILLY AV WINTER PARK FL 32789 H-645-4855 P-763-1841	BRANDY PEKTOR 4101 GREEK PARK DR ORLANDO FL 32816-1610 273-2604	ERIN MCWILLIAMS 4101 GREEK PARK DR ORLANDO FL 32816-1610 281-9244	3250 RIVERSIDE DR. PO BOX 21397 COLUMBUS OH 43221-0397 (614) 481-8169 FAX: (614) 481-0133
DELTA SIGMA THETA INC (MU LOTA) UCF STUDENT ACTIVITIES PO BOX 163245 ORLANDO FL 32816-3245	ANGELA F. MOSLEY EXCEPT & PHYSICAL ED ED 214 ORLANDO FL 32816-1250 W-823-2036	DR. MARTHA LUE LAKE MARY FL 32746 H-330-2829			1707 NEW HAMPSHIRE AVE NW WASHINGTON DC 20009 (202) 986-2505 FAX: (202) 986-2513
KAPPA DELTA (EPSILON OMICRON) 4303 GREEK PARK DR ORLANDO FL 32816-1690 (407) 381-5388	MELANIE WINGS 608 WEYBRIDGE CT LAKE MARY FL 32746 H-(407)-324-2224 W-(904)-228-6039	JACKIE HILL 1095 LAKE ROGERS CIR. OVIEDO, FL 32765 H-359-2102 PGR-419-8915	JANIE HILTON 4303 GREEK PARK DR. ORLANDO FL 32816-1690 (407) 382-9050	JEN SARDONE 4303 GREEK PARK DR. ORLANDO, FL 32816-1690 384-1206	3205 PLAYERS LANE MEMPHIS TN 38125 (901) 748-1897 FAX: (901) 748-0949
PI BETA PHI (ETA EPSILON) 4304 GREEK PARK DR ORLANDO FL 32816-1710 (407) 281-4988	SHEILA ALLNUTT 207-1637	JENNY SCHLABACH 19641 FLORENTINE CIRCLE CLEMONT FL 34711 (352) 394-5667	JULIE LOGAN 4304 GREEK PARK DR. ORLANDO FL 32816-1710 273-2603	TARA SOUTH 4304 GREEK PARK DR. ORLANDO, FL 32816-1710 249-9711	7730 CARONDELET SUITE 333 ST. LOUIS MO 63105-3415 (314) 727-7338 FAX: (314) 727-8049
SIGMA GAMMA RHO INC UCF STUDENT ACTIVITIES PO BOX 163245 ORLANDO FL 32816-3245 823-2968	SHEILA MAYS 823-2968	CHRIS MCCRAY JR UCF HOUSING OFFICE SC 137 ORLANDO FL 32816-3222 W-823-4663			8800 S. STONEY ISLAND AVE. CHICAGO IL 60617 (312) 873-9000 FAX: (312) 731-9642
ZETA PHI BETA INC (SIGMA EPSILON) UCF STUDENT ACTIVITIES PO BOX 163245 ORLANDO FL 32816-3245	ROBIN JOHNSON 882-1339	LAINITA TAYLOR 9426 TORRINGTON AVE ORLANDO FL 32817 384-3048 W-858-5923			1734 NEW HAMPSHIRE AVE NW WASHINGTON DC 20009 (202) 387-3103 FAX: (202) 232-4593
ZETA TAU ALPHA (ETA KAPPA) 4202 GREEK PARK DR ORLANDO FL 32816-1630 (407) 380-3695	ALARA MURPHY 281-4371	MELISSA TOMASSO 1005 CORKWOOD DR OVIEDO FL 32765 H-365-6704 W-407-449-4254	HEATHER SHAW 2826 CULLEN LAKE SHORE DR ORLANDO FL 32812 W-646-6912 H-851-4979	KRISTEN HOLLEY 4202 GREEK PARK DR. ORLANDO FL 32816-1630 207-6074	3450 FOUNDERS RD. INDIANAPOLIS IN 46268 (317) 872-0540 FAX: (317) 876-3948

FRATERNITY: (Chapter)	PRESIDENT	ADVISOR	HOUSE CORPORATION	HOUSE DIRECTOR	HOUSE MANAGER	NATIONAL HEADQUARTERS
ACACIA (FLORIDA ALPHA) UCF STUDENT ACTIVITIES PO BOX 163245 ORLANDO FL 32816-3245 (407) 381-4983	JASON LOEHNERT 381-4983					8777 PURDUE RD INDIANAPOLIS, IN 46268 (317) 872-8210 FAX: (317) 872-8213
ALPHA EPSILON PI UCF STUDENT ACTIVITIES PO BOX 163245 ORLANDO FL 32816-3245 823-0441	SETH HARAC 823-0441	BOB WEISS 274 SYLVIAN BLVD WINTER PARK FL 32789-4046 H-647-5319				8815 WESLEYAN RD INDIANAPOLIS, IN 46268-1171 (317) 876-1913 FAX: (317) 876-1057
ALPHA PHI ALPHA, INC (XI LOTA) UCF STUDENT ACTIVITIES PO BOX 163245 ORLANDO FL 32816-3245 823-4663	GREGORY SAUNDERS W-823-4663 H 859-8097	CHRIS MCCRAY UCF HOUSING OFFICE SC 137 ORLANDO FL 32816 W-823-4663				2313 ST PAUL ST BALTIMORE, MD 21218 (410) 554-0040 FAX: (410) 554-0054
ALPHA TAU OMEGA (ETA RHO) 4419 GREEK COURT ORLANDO FL 32816-1790 (407) 208-0080	MIKE BRUBAKER 384-6319	ROBERT TERRY 7781 FERNBROOK WAY WINTER PARK FL 32792 H-679-3752 W-839-0120	PAUL STARKS 484 WILD FOX DR CASSELBERRY FL 32707 HW 699-1565	FRAN MORAN 4419 GREEK COURT ORLANDO, FL 32816 (407) 384-1992	JUAN ONGAY #10 ORLANDO, FL 32816	141 EAST WASHINGTON ST SUITE 300 INDIANAPOLIS, IN 46204 (317) 684-1865 FAX: (317) 684-1862
DELTA TAU DELTA (ZETA OMEGA) UCF STUDENT ACTIVITIES PO BOX 163245 ORLANDO FL 32816-3245 823-8719	RAJIV PATEL 823-8719	PATRICK BRANDT 9317 DANAY ST. GOTHA, FL 34734-5005 H-823-8719 W-658-8818	SAMUEL CRUZ 7409 KEY LARGO DR #1311 WINTER PARK, FL 32792 W-897-5600 X7524 H-673-9509 PGR-426-4561			11711 N MERIDIAN ST STE 100 CARMEL, IN 46032 (317) 818-3030 FAX: (317) 818-3040
DELTA UPSILON UCF STUDENT ACTIVITIES PO BOX 163245 ORLANDO FL 32816-3245 384-3131	STEVE TIBSTRA 384-3131	AL PASCALE 1335 PIRATE LANE WINTER PARK, FL 32792-6146 W-658-3520 H-677-6364	PAUL ROSENTHAL %FOLEY & LARDNER PO BOX 2193 ORLANDO, FL 32802-2193 W-423-7656			P.O. BOX 68942 INDIANAPOLIS, IN 46268-0942 (317) 875-8900 FAX: (317) 876-1629
KAPPA ALPHA PSI FRATERNITY, INC. (LAMBDA OMEGA) UCF STUDENT ACTIVITIES PO BOX 163245 ORLANDO FL 32816-3245 671-3360	ROBERT McCLINTON 671-3360	DR. HUGH MARTIN EXCEPT & PHYSICAL ED ED 214 ORLANDO, FL 32816-1250 W-823-2048				2322-24 NORTH BROAD ST PHILADELPHIA, PA 19132 (215) 228-7184 FAX: (215) 228-7181
KAPPA SIGMA (LAMBDA EPSILON) 4322 GREEK PARK DR ORLANDO, FL 32816-1751 823-9286	DON ADAM 306-8786	DAVE MACINTOSH 1812 WYANDOTTE TRAIL CASSELBERRY, FL 32707 W-667-8609 H-331-2921	DAVE MACINTOSH (INTERIM) 1812 WYANDOTTE TRAIL CASSELBERRY, FL 32707 W-667-8609 H-331-2921	BRIAN DORNBUSCH 4322 GREEK PARK DR. ORLANDO, FL 32816 381-5058	KEVIN BURROUGHS 4322 GREEK PARK DR. ORLANDO, FL 32816 306-8731	P.O. BOX 5066 CHARLOTTESVILLE, VA 22905 (804) 295-3193 FAX: (804) 296-9557
LAMBDA CHI ALPHA (BETA ETA) UCF STUDENT ACTIVITIES PO BOX 163245 ORLANDO FL 32816-3245 282-6671	MIKE AARON 282-6671	MIKE SAUNDERS 2013 CONWAY GARDENS RD. ORLANDO, FL 32806 W-836-7538 H-898-2464	GORDON MIRANDA 2929 FITZTOOTH WINTER PARK, FL 32792 W-245-1735 H-673-2472			8741 FOUNDERS RD INDIANAPOLIS, IN 46268 (317) 872-8000 FAX: (317) 875-3828
LAMBDA THETA PHI LATIN FRATERNITY INC. (ALPHA ALPHA) UCF STUDENT ACTIVITIES PO BOX 163245 ORLANDO FL 32816-3245 366-2870	MANUEL A. TORO 366-2870 pg# 807-5240	JUSTINA GONZALEZ-MARTI MULTICULTURAL STUDENT SVC ADM 145 ORLANDO, FL 32816-0135 W-823-2716 H-363-6537				703 73RD ST NORTH BERGEN, NJ 07047-5440

UNIVERSITY OF CENTRAL FLORIDA MASTER LISTING FOR FRATERNITIES AND SORORITIES (Revised 6/30/98)

FRATERNITY (Chapter)	PRESIDENT	ADVISOR	HOUSE CORPORATION	HOUSE DIRECTOR	HOUSE MANAGER	NATIONAL HEADQUARTERS
PHI BETA SIGMA FRATERNITY, INC. (IOTA RHO) UCF STUDENT ACTIVITIES PO BOX 163245 ORLANDO FL 32816-3245	GREG BROWN	DR. DAVID WASHINGTON UCF MOLEC & MICRO BIOLOGY BIO 330 ORLANDO, FL 32816-2360 W-823-5932				145 KENNEDY ST NW WASHINGTON, DC 20011-5294 (202) 726-5434 FAX: (202) 882-1681
PHI DELTA THETA (FLORIDA IOTA) UCF STUDENT ACTIVITIES PO BOX 163245 ORLANDO FL 32816-3245 382-2282 OR 273-4193	LYLE AGINS 273-4193 PGR 800-514-5517	MAJOR BELL 2648 ROBERT TRENT JONES DR #224 ORLANDO FL 32835-6269 H-294-8001 PGR-649-0333	MAJOR BELL 2648 ROBERT TRENT JONES DR #224 ORLANDO FL 32835-6269 H-294-8001 PGR-649-0333			2 SOUTH CAMPUS AVE OXFORD, OH 45056 (513) 523-6345 FAX: (513) 523-9200
PHI GAMMA DELTA (OMEGA PHI) UCF STUDENT ACTIVITIES PO BOX 163245 ORLANDO FL 32816-3245 275-8540	JEFF TAKACS 275-8540	MICHAEL WEISS 870 SANDHILL CRANE CT VIERA FL 32955	CRAIG CLOSSEN 815 RICHLAND CT UNIT 75 ALHAMBRA SPRINGS FL 32714 H-862-2337			P.O. BOX 4599 LEXINGTON, KY 40544-4599 (606) 255-1848 FAX: (606) 253-0779
PI KAPPA ALPHA (ETA PHI) 4100 GREEK PARK DRIVE ORLANDO, FL 32816-1510 249-2517	ADAM ZAWISLAK 249-5637	CHRIS PETERSON 980 VINERIDGE RUN #107 ALHAMBRA SPRINGS, FL 32714 H-523-2352 W-1-800-877-6323 x51066	RALPH SIMON 7544 EAGLET CT FT. MYERS, FL 33912 H (941) 768-1212 W(941) 433-1886	MIKE STRAUSS 4100 GREEK PARK DR. ORLANDO, FL 32816 (407) 249-5637		8347 WEST RANGE COVE MEMPHIS, TN 38125 (901) 748-1868 FAX: (901) 748-3100
PI KAPPA PHI UCF STUDENT ACTIVITIES PO BOX 163245 ORLANDO FL 32816-3245 (407) 327-9993	MIKE DUCKWORTH 213 SOUTH MOSS RD WINTER SPRINGS, FL 32708 (407) 327-9993	DAVID MEADOR 7147-128 YACHT BASIN AVE. ORLANDO, FL 32835 H-407-295-5766 W-407-646-7058				P.O. BOX 240526 CHARLOTTE, NC 28224 (704) 523-6000 FAX (704) 521-8962
SIGMA ALPHA EPSILON (FLORIDA EPSILON) 4321 GREEK PARK DR. ORLANDO, FL 32816-1750 281-1856	ROB SPANO 381-5430	STUART ZOOCK 729 MINERVA LANE LAKE MARY, FL 32746 H-324-0025 FX-324-9695	JOHN KELLEY 8627 BAY VIEW CT. ORLANDO, FL 32836 W-356-5655 H-352-8322 FAX-356-2665	DARIN PATTON 4321 GREEK PARK DR. ORLANDO, FL 32816 (407) 277-5684	JOHN MELILLO 4321 GREEK PARK DR. ORLANDO, FL 32816 306-6144	P.O. BOX 1856 EVANSTON, IL 60204-1856 (708) 475-1856 FAX: (708) 475-2250
SIGMA CHI (ETA PI) 4418 GREEK COURT ORLANDO, FL 32816-1770 382-9216	ANDY CUPICHA 384-1939	DAVID B. LAWTON 4244 KENDRICK RD, ORLANDO, FL 32804 W-291-2501 H-647-3220	ALAN FIDELIO 7912 BRIDGESTONE DR. ORLANDO, FL 32835 W-889-4530 H-294-3622	BARBARA HILL 4418 GREEK COURT ORLANDO, FL 32816-1750 (407) 382-9216	ORLANDO ORTIZ 4418 GREEK COURT ORLANDO, FL 32816-1760 381-0421	1714 HINMAN AVE. BOX 469 EVANSTON, IL 60201 (708) 869-3655 FAX: (708) 869-4906
SIGMA PHI EPSILON (FLORIDA MU) 4400 GREEK COURT ORLANDO, FL 32816-1760 380-0887	TRAVIS BELL 384-9424 pgr 972-5013	STEVE DETTOR 1545 BRIERCLIFF DR ORLANDO, FL 32806 W-898-9401 H-898-4498	SCOTT SWEENEY 235 BROADMOOR RD. LAKE MARY, FL 32746 H-328-0607 PGR. 526-0033	RICHARD PARROTT 4400 GREEK COURT ORLANDO, FL 32816-1760 (407) 380-0887	TBA 4400 GREEK COURT ORLANDO, FL 32816-1760 (407) 282-5785	P.O. BOX 1901 RICHMOND, VA 23215-1901 (804) 353-1901 FAX: (804) 359-8160
TAU KAPPA EPSILON (XI IOTA) UCF STUDENT ACTIVITIES PO BOX 163245 ORLANDO FL 32816-3245 737-2657	KEITH DANOFF 1700 WOODBURY RD. #2001 ORLANDO, FL 32828 737-2657	WALLY BOUDREAUX 1700 WOODBURY RD #2001 ORLANDO, FL 32828 H-282-3030 PGR 372-3062	JIM BALASCHAK 1780 OTISCO WAY WINTER SPRINGS, FL 32708 W-359-1008			8645 FOUNDERS RD. INDIANAPOLIS, IN 46268-1393 (317) 872-6533 FAX: (317) 875-TEKE(8353)